A. INDENTITY OF PETITIONERS

The Vetitltion,,fS Guest at5k this Court to preview the Court of

Appeals decision set forth in Part B. 

H. COURT OF APPEALS DEC, [SION

The Cow -t of Appear hied its pub 11shod opinion in this appeal on

August 2, 2016. That opinion is in the Appendix at pages A -I througlh A- 

13. That opinion is gelated Lo and is associated v, ith the 6vesi 3•_ Lange. 

Court of Appeals unpublished Opinion No. 46802- 6- 11 issued by Divieiorn

11 of the Couri of Appeals on Ji) n.c 14, 2016. A Petition for Review of that

Opinion was filed by the Talmad,,,,e/PitzpatricklTr-Ibe lave fim) and

Attorney Phillip Tf lmad.ge and Attorney Sidney Tribe with Division 11 crf

STATEMENT OF THE CASF

The Court oI- Appeals beef recAwl an of liniited facts in thi s apgcal

aj-e Iarely correct. 

Tiowevcr, it is important that the original developer who recorded a

declaration of cox cnants and CC. Rs in 1986 did not own and did not

have anv title ro any of the real property oe Lots, including theGuests' 

Lot, in the development where the Guests and the Langes oven property

and, Further, that the. developeir did not own any of the development Lots, 

including Lot 5 that the separate " Patio or Teck Easement” document. that

was reeorded %ly-ith the County Auditor' s office in 1987 was not notarized - 

acknowledged or scaled, the sole signature on the document was not



idelitifed, that a third party recorded the document not the deweloper, and

that there is unrei;irtted evidence that the signature on the 198 7 recorded

alleged ` easement' document was " Mery probably" a forgery. 

Although the developer did not hive. any standing to create ni, to

record ainy covenants or CC&.Rs regulating the use or the constructi() n of

anv structures on the developmenr property or to grant any deck ease hent

to any person, entity or Lot onto or over any other Lot bccaus the

developer did not own or have any title to any of the development real

property, and did not f} ave any standing to grant any deck easement on any

part of Lot. 5 to any person or entity in the 1987 recorded " Patio or Deck

Gasernent" because the developer did not own Lot 5 at any tinn.e as a

matter of lave, the Lariges adopted and assumed the 1987 recorded " Patio

or Teck h'asment" D opera -ended release, hold harndess, delense- 

payor and full irtdemzxity language as their oven requiring that the I, anges

release, defend and fully indemnify the Grlests from, against and for " any

and all" ckaims, suits, causes of action, proccedirt-,s, darnages, loss, injury

of any kind, type or nature, attorneys fees, costs acid expenses and/ or

judgments of any kind arising out of and/car related to the " usc" of any

Lange or Lot 4 owner decks or patio on the Guests' property, or the

utilization of the 1987 recorded ` easement' document- 



The Section D recorded 1987 release, defense, indeinnii.y anal

payor contract Ianguage that the binges adopted and assumed as their own

open- ended insurance contract and policy states in clear, plain and

unambiguous words that- 

h -an w

hat: 

h-anwe promises, covenams and agrees that. the Grantor shall not

be liable loi' any injuries a ncurred by the Grantee, the CxTantee' s

ucsts andr' r Lhird parties arising frown the utilization of said

easement pend further Grantee agrees to hol d Grantor harm €ess

and defend and full+ rndernnify Grantor against any and all

claims, actions, and s« 3ts

ar3LJ] 
n from the utilization of` 

said easement and to satisfy and all judgments that may

feSAL fTom $;ard clalms. actions, and/ or suits. 

Opinion at 3, footnote 2. 

The articles of incorporation for the developinent' s community

association that. had Irinitcd and restrictive powers and authority under its

charter pi -oh 3b-1ted the associations or the developer from rctguIanng the 11s

or the exterior of any of the privately owned Lots, and also prohibited t11e

association or the devc1oper from granting am.., easement of any kind to

any Lot owner or to any Lot onto, over, under or upon any other Lot. 

Cinder the association' s charter, the Internal Revenue Code501((,)(7) 

commumty association was governed incl controlled by federal law and

4



was expressly prohibited from conducting or carrying on any activity at

any time that was not permitted by LKC X501( c)( 7). IRC § 501( c)( 7) and

applieablc 501( c )( 7) rules and regulatzons prohibit a § 501{ c ( 7) 

urgariizatiort such as the developrnent' conaMUnity association from

administcrino acid/ oi- enforciris any architectural covenants nnd. or

architectural CC R; arnong other pirohibitions, limitations and

restrictians, IIICluding any puirportcd but nu 11 and vo-Id) grant of any deck

or structural ease mcnt one Lot unto another Lot., 

B y 2410, the I_ancYes wanted to tear down their their existing, deck

to build a new dlf er ntly configured dock it} SI) riT] g 2011. The Lan es

notified the Gucsis that their then existing deck was encroaching on the

Gucsts' property, but not to worry that the Lasxges who had the Gucsts' 

predecessor owners' permission to havQ a deck on part of the Guests' 

property would not build f.heir r)ew deck on any part of the Guests' 

property_ 1n 2011, the Langer asked the Guests fur permito build

their nw deck on pall of the Guests' property 1n nn area where if cumeri LIy

was. The Guests infused. The Langer built their new dcck on part of- the

Guests' property whefe it had been before when the Guests were out of

state with the knowledge that the Guests did not ve perinis 31on. 

5



When the Uirn es refused to remove their neva, deck from the

Guests' pfoperty, the Guests filed a complaint alleging various claims

including that the Larges had a duty under the 1987 re&orded Section D

release, defense, indemnity, payor and hale/ harmless contract to

indemnity the, Guests for any and all claims, dam aL}es, loss, fees, cost, anal

expen; es ausing from and/ or related to the const€ur,6on, u, e and

maintauce or any Lange or Lot 4 owner deck on any part of the Guests' 

property an& or the use o ufilIMai on of the 1 {) 87 recorded ` deck easement' 

dor;unxerit. In breach and violation of the Section D release, fkjll Guest

defense 1u11 Guest indemnity and full Guest held hai-niless and pa nr

contract langauge the the I, angcs had adopted and as; kfnxed as their own, 

the Langes filed an unsuccessful trespass counterclaim agYainst the GUe4t4

for accessing the Langer' new deck on part of the { iuest5' piroperty, and

requested a quiet title_ udgtncnt against the Guests in their Counterclaim

Prayer for Relief'. Although the, Langes filed a trespa, s counterclaim

against the Guests and a inotion [' or , ummary judgment to dis3n1ss all of

the Guests claims, the Langes had adopted and assunned the 1997 recorded

deck easement' Section D language as their oven release, defense, 

Iildeninity. payor and hold harmless contract mandating and recluirin that

the La es release the Guests frorn -' any„ Lange injury of any kikid, nature

or type thereby prohibiting and tarring the filing or the assertion of any



Lange counterclaim again; t the Guests or any " quiet #itle" PI -ager for

Relief. The Guests tiled a notice of ] is peridens agairxst the Manges

property before the sure mary judgment bearings, and also file an updated

and supplemental lis peixderls in March 2015. 

The trial cclurt dismissed the Lames' trespass countercla- mains# 

the GLIeqS on summary Judgment with prejudice The #.Tial court aLyveed

with the Guests that the Guests had the right to access, be on, use and

enjoy the Lange deck that was nn a certain part Of #ho Guests' property- 
because ropertybecausethe Guests' owned and had title to the underlying ] and and

property_ The L4n4}cs stipulated before trial that they would not appeal

that. judgment and did not do so, as they could not in any event under the

Section D contract language, car under tht recorded C('& -Rs in any event. 

The ueSt„' claims for trespass, breach of contract_ and the

Larges” breach of their duty of good faith and fair dealing WCIIt to Iury
trial_ The Langes' asserted but null, void and non- existent ' quiet title' 

Counterclaim did not go to jury trial_ The jury dict not return any rluict
title verdict. On Sepkcmber 19, 2014, the trial court dismissed all of #hc

GUOSts claims ag inst the Laljges Zth pi-ejudice and granted the Lariges' 

no31- Cxi tent ` quiet ti#Je' claim OTE a summary basis and granted an alleged

permanent injufictic)n." against the Guests prohibiting the C,-ucst firom

7



acccssina and/ or using any Udnge. deck ori aDy part of the Guests property

without an.v post -verdict motion practice, without permitting anv argil rn e nt

by the Guests and without a ' quio lille' aud/ or injunction evidenl.iai); 

lieai7rr . and ardeci the Lan,, es statutory attnrnevs tees of $250.00 and

miscellaneous Langte requested costs for a total mortetary judgment of

5565. RP { 911.91,- 0 14) at *":-**
3 q

The Guests appealed, deposited $ 1, 000.00 in cash supersedeas

wish the clerk of the superior court along with a Noti ce of Deposit of Cash

Superscdcas pursuant to kNP 8. 1{} r)( 1) and ( 2.) to inirnediately and

atatoarraticall stay andupeFecle tlle reel and personal property and

money judgrrrcrits and orders mains€ the Guests as a matte3- of right, 

includ-Inge the September 19, 3014 order and judgment irr the Langes' 

favor, which inciudcd the alleged ' quiet tide' judgm(crtt and any and all

adverse orders anti iudgm.ents apin.st the Guests in this real and pci-sonal

property case and action. The Guests filed an Amended Notice, of Staff, 

and Deposit of C ash Supevsede4s in April 2015. 

The Langes were, are riot and cannot be kgofieved parties in this

action or on appeal under RAI' 3 1 and, therefore, cannot seek or obtain

any relief, remedy or recovery- From the Guests under the Section D

release, dcfcnse, indenInity, pavoiF and hold harnfiess contract Iam- mage



that the Langes adopted and assumed as lhei.r own, the null and void 1987

recorded ` deck casement' document, the CC &, Rs, the coilamunity

association' s charter and articles of incorporabon, IRC § 501 ( C )( 7) 

federal, corporate 01- state law. 

L -Mer the Section D open- ended release, deferkse, indemnity, 

payor and hold harmless contract language that the Lam es adopted and

assumed for theinsclves binding themselves to the Gae t!3 as the Guest' 

full Indemnitors, defenders and payors, the Langes aye required under the

clear and plain words of the Section D 4m uagc to release the Guests from

any I.:ange or any other claiyn i and/or related to and/ or arising

emit of the use of any Lange or Lange property owner, successor or ansa{} n

by any pcf-son pr emity aTkWor the utilization of the ` easement' docul-nen.t

and satisfy ( which includes di, raiV3s) and/or pay any such judgment oi- 

money order_ In addiLion, the Lan es are also required udder the Section

D defense, indeMFlity, payer and hold harmless language to pay, reimburse

and compensate the Guests for any and all guest or other individual' s it

cn.titics' attorneys and other fees, casts and expenses incurred by_ 

sustained, irnposccl upon the Guests, and/ or paid by the [ guests in the past, 

in the present and in the future in artd/ oar relatod to any related and! or

9



associated claims, matters suits, actions, appeals, appellme. pi-oceedings, 

als audrfox remands. 

Although the Guests prevailed in this appeal, the Guests did clot

have to prevail iri order to receive the Guests' entitlement to the C tinges' 

fuII release, ineludirig release from any Lan -c claim, suit and judgmcm, 

the Lan-ges' full defense, W indemnity and full Lange payment for any

and a I I Gucst fees, costs and expense, darn ages, loss, jn.juI-y of anv kind, 

harm and interest theron, and any and all benefits of the Lan,-cs' full 11old

harnrnle!3s insurance- The ordinary Enlis  d1ctionary nxcanin - attributed to

the words " anv and all" and the words " any itxjtiry" apply to the use of

those words in the Larige Section D language contract- The i,alzges, the

trial court and the Guests all agreed that the Section D contract Iail guagc

was clear and that it kvas not 4txtbi, Yuo4Is. The, Langes did not assert or

claim at any tirn- that the Section D contract latiguage %vas against public

policy or un om;cloRable. 

Just as the Court of Appeals found in its opinion that the definition

of tlie word " settfod- in R(; W 4.28 320 In an ordinary dictionary WOUld

elucidate the meanin-g of that word citing to and relyin{x on 7hims-ion

ounl v- Cooper Point As'.* "r, 148 Wn.2d 1, 12, 57 P -:id 1156 ( 2002) 

10



ridicaiinv { 1n Opinion pages 7- S that it was not unlikely that the Coart of

Appeals Guest v_ I.ange Appeal No. 46802- 6- 11 Opinion would be

changed in the Washington Supreme Court and thereFore not a final

opinion, so here also the card -Mazy dictionairy detin1tian of the words " any

and aJI" and " any injuzy" used in the Lange Section D Ian uagxe contract

incan'" any a,nd all" and `-art v'" injury encompassing an and all ( it] est fees, 

costs and expenses, any and all [ west darrkagc, loss, injure+ oi- harni and

ally Lype of " claim'" and " injury" illClLiding real propei-ty, per nal

pi-operty" personal injuI v and/or " bodily" injury but not limited to bodily

injure. ') floe words " third parte" and " bodily itxjuiy" do not exist its the

ectian D contract Ian{oua e. Tfiere are no Section D time or othicr Iiniits, 

restrictions, exclusions or parameters. The Langes did not rescrve any

right wilder the Section D contract Ianguage to sue the Guests or to file any

elaIms against the Guests, or any right to falI or refuse to defend, rd ease, 

pay, coin pen satc, fully indeinmfy, Mold the Cjuests h rniless and pay find

satisfv any judgnlcnt against tile, GLIests and/ or related to any use, 

construction or mairiterlance of any range or Lot 4 owner patio or deck on

any part of the Guests' propezty or the use and utilization of the 1987

recorded document by UY person or entity including, but vat limited to, 

any use by the Langes, any Cokirt or any other entity or Individual. 



The words that the Washington Supreme Court and appellate

courts used in the recently amended RAP S. ] ( b), ( b)( 1) and ( b) () are to

be given the , ante con wtvr tion, application and ana[vsis than the Court of

Appeals used and applied in its opinion to the RCW 4- 28-324 words

settled-'- -`discontinued" and -`abated". 

RAP SA( b) states and provides that — Any party to a ruvieX

proceeding has the right to stay enforcement of a inoney judgincnt or a

dp,ciision affecting real, personal or intelIema] property, pendin- rev-1ew'' 

An absolute right. RAP S. I ( b)( ] ) further prescri bes, states and provides

the process and the procedure that a party must follow to stay the

enforcement of a money. ju inent. Rum= to RAP S- I ( b)( 1 }: 

a pally Frey stay enfork:emeixt of money judgment 1) y ii ling

in the teal court a supersedeas bond or cash., or by a]wrnatjV:, 

SCC uriLy approvvd by the trial court pcirsuant to subsection (b)( 4). 

Emphasis in hold and italics added. 

Cash is no 1on er " alLernative security" under RAS' 8- ] ( b)- The

deposit ofa cashier' s check ( Le- caA) with the clerk of a superior court

and tht filing, of a Notice of Deposit of Cuh Supersedeas in the court

records immediately and automatically stay the enforcement of any

12



money jiikigyment as a matter of no, it. Opd) i if another party files a R A V

8- 1( c) motion in the trial court objecting to the sufficiency of the caslr

supersedeas within 7 days aftex- the parry malking the motion is seg-Ved W1th

a copy ol- the Notice of deposit of the cash supersedeas which acts as a

bond, is the sufficiency of the cash supersedeas deposited IV-Ith the clerk of

the superior court at issue. 

RAP 8. l( e) further provides that " stay of enforcement of the trial

court decision may be pt-eserved ottly if' the party who deposited the cash

that the trial coui-t has to first determine wua 3 " i» adequate" based on a

properly filed RAP 8, 1( e} motion if the parity who deposited the cash

supplerrients the already deposited cash within 7 days -`after the entry of

the order declaring the. supersedeas deficient"- This trial coutrt

determination, aiad trial court approval of any cash deposited with the

clerk, of the superior court wiII and can only 1) e made under R AP 8- 1( c) if

another px-ty with standing in the matter and action files a timely and

proper RAP 8. 1(. e) -Motion and Under no other circumstance as a rnattcr of

law. The RAP 8- 1( e) reference to a " preserved` stay explicitly and

expresdy elucidates that a party' s deposit of cash supersedeas with the

clerk of the superior court rtz mediatcly and automatically stays and

supersedes the enfot-cement cif" any real, personal, intellectual or rrnrrney



judgment, decision or order during any revs proceeding as a matter of

Jgilt, su€rject only to RAP 8- 1( e) and RAP 8. l( h), anchor a supersedeas

decision appeal. 

RAP 8. ] (bX2) nates and provides is pertinent part. excCpt ] acre

Prohibited by statute, thal " a party may obtain a stay of enforcement of a

decision affecting rights to possession, ow ers]rip or use of T - ca] property, 

Tangible personai property, or intarngihle persona] praperty, by filing in the
trial court a supersedeas.. cash, repeating the sirgifar words in RAI' 

8- I( b)( I). The process and procedures identified and €>utlitied in RAP

8. 1( e) to raise the issue whcther th.e cash supersedeas filed and deposited

with the Cferk of the superior court was sufficient and adequate apply to
R ' 8- f ( b)( 2) iu- t as they do W the deposit of cash . UPCJ-Sedeas pursuant
io RAP 8. 1( b)( 1) The burden is on an objecting party who has standi li {c) irl
the action and is '

eved to chalierr e the su#f'lciency and the adequacv
Of the amount of the cash supersedeas deposited wilth at least  7 day

pci7od wherein the ii-mmcdiate and the autornxatic stay at t]ze instant and

tl7rrmcnt of filing " as ol" ri4}i t" is pre encd until and the pazty

deposits supplcmentai cash in this instance if the trial cOurt dctcrirti xcs
under a properly and timely filed RAP 8. ] (e) rnOtion that the original cash

deposit was inadequate. 

14



Webster' s Third New laternat i onal Dictionary 1794 ( 2002) defa)cs

the word '` preservation." to mean " the act of preserving or the state of

being preserved" . The word " preserved- its turn is defined in. Pertinent

part to mean " to keep safe frorn in)ury, harm, or destruction : pard or

defend from evil : PROTECT, SAVE". The word " right" as used in RAP

9- 1( b) is defined also in turn irI pertinent part is " an absolute right not

depending upon discretion or favor". EB TER' S T1;1MD NEW

INTERNATXO 1Af. DICTIONARY 1995 ( 2002). 

E. AR , 1: IIrFF WHY - IEW SHOULD BE GRANTED

This Court has recognized the irnportance of addressing real and

personal property and of course nioney rights and decisions, acts or

actions that would interfere with, impair and/ or ` take' any real property, 

personal property or money from a partywith the danger that. once - taken', 

interfered with and/or impaired that the real property, personal property

and/ or in€ ney may be lost in whole, or in part forever, and significant and

perhaps peT-nianent loss, damage, ftnancial and outer inj-ury and harm rnay. 

be Jmposed upon a party - 

This Court has also i-ecognized the importance of addressing

indemnification and indemnity rights as evidenced by its direct review of

the 01j, of 7 2corrju r- 0y rf 13rrrr€ ey LA!, 17; U'n- 2d 584, 269 P3 -d

15



1017 ( 2012) appeal. The ( j1v q1' Tacoma Opinion issued in January 2012

was issued before the, Division Y 14emyx)n Yacht Baan As.02 olf Condo- 

Ownc'r-s v_ upremeNw, 168 W n. App. 86. 285 P. 3d 70 ( 2012), rc'viel+' 

denied, 175 Wri. 2d 1015 (' 20 12) Court of .appeals opinlon was issued in

May 2012 irivolvin& a broad 1ndemn1fication and 1ndem mty agromient. In

Neiiyr tri Yacht, () 1vision L of the Court of Appeals noted that. Court of

Appeals has " previously dere€mined that the phrase " any and all balms" is

to be; liven its ordinal meaning and includes all types of claims", citing

to and 1- cl ing on MacLean lbwnhorr e s, IV.' v- Am- f" & i'n t

udders, Inc. , 133 thrash. App. 82.8, 8311, 138 P 3d 155 ( 2006), equally

applicable to the use of tkac words -`aixy injui- r" in the Section D contract

language Ncwpori Yacht, 168 Wash. App- at 101, 285 P.3d at. 7 , 8f). 

The Court of Appeals in Ncrwpoi-f Yacht also held that its the

ahsence of any torn, provision, words or language in an indemnity or

indemnification agreement that the indemnitee ( here the Guests) is

required to prevail before any duty and obligation to indemnify, and/ or

here to defend, hold harmless, release and/ or pa.y. then in that event the

indemnitee is not required to prevail as any trigger to hidemBity. In fact - 

in real Ity, the Indemnity payments and compensation will be greater if the

indemnitee does not prcvai1. also, the Court of Appcals in _'4 c̀mT0r-1 Yacht

16



also lie]d in May 2012 after this Court issued its ( 7ity q( Iuic rma c pinlon in

January 2012 that ars indcnitutce should be indemnificd under an

rnckemnity agrcemem and contract for in oven acts and/ or purported or

alIc,-,cd omissions under and aQcord-] ng to the terms, words, pro -v ons and

langua-}c of the indemnity agreement c3tin to JoyPe' v Srro€rr Const- Co. 

84 Wash. 2d 518, 527 P.2d 1115 (' 1974) ( likening ars 3ndemnity contract

and agreement to insurance and an insuranQe contract and policy) 

New. -Port Yacht, 168 Wash. App at 100-. '' 3 5 P -3d at 79 - 

Thi Court of appeals in Neiiporl Yacht did not add any word z; to

the indeamity contract and agreement, Under Washingtonton law, none call

be added to a clear, pla1n and uria mbiIguous iMein nILy or otkter contract or

to an insurance policy or contract- The Courts have a duty to apply the

law to the facts and to the contract as written. Hearst Communications tip. 

Seauk Timeo, 154 Wn- 2d 49i, 11 --) P.3d 262, 27]! ( 200 5) ( generalized

public policy concerns cannot be used to rewrite a clear acid law. fui

contact, the courts " m, rll nol, tirrdei- the gifi.s-e gj'IM blicpo)ky, )-ei4--)-ite ci

cr:ec rirrac'f'; s rortg public policy cannot be a basis to rewrite the

con tmc ct, our duty+ is dear, " I I1hcat duly is if) uphold the l t; and to c r rxr c: r

lm I crtu•cxerllrxwsparlies brij-W 4' fi re ns:'). ' IIe C: omi cannot add or

delete woods to tete wntract. 1,( 7i-mE.rs Ms- Co- v- .Vdlef', S7

fin. 2d 70, 73, 549 P. 2.d 9 ( 1976); Agmem- a Lacq-v (" - Pi -. 33 Wn. App. 
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28.3, 288, 654 P. Zd 712, revie-w denied, 99 1 n. 2d 1006 ( 1983). The

Court. o F App eals vi ol ated this priiiciplewhen it held that the Section D

con tme-t Ianguage that the La ng adopted and assumed did not apply to

this action and this appeal. The Cmrt of- Appeals thus -Improperly Iimited

thc scope of O) e Section D language to uases invol vi ng only claims by

third parties, and riot claims by the Utinges, and restf.cted its application

only to alleged " bodiIy injury" claim; by adding no13- e istcnt words to the

contract. 

Washington State and the Washington Statc Courts have also} 

racognized that indemnity and in! ura.nce contract and policies and the

actions and conduct and application of those contract are a utter of

i ni#ican t and substantial public importance as evidenced in part by this

CouTt' S regent Cedell tip_ FzTrmer.v Ir?.v_ Co, 176 Wash_ 2d 686, 2.95 P.> d

239, 246 { 2013} opinion affirming, that a bad faith auempt by an insurer

and al, o in this instance to avoid an insured' s and/ or an indeMI'Atee' s

Tneritorious claim is " tantarnount to a civil fraud". 

The Division If Court of Appeals 6uf•w ,:_ l,cxnge Appcal No.

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