# RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON CLERK'S OFFICE

Nov 02, 2016, 9:58 am

## RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY

Case No. 93693-5

## SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

CHRISTOPHER GUEST and SUZANNE GUEST, Petitioners,

v.
DAVID LANGE and KAREN LANGE,
Respondents.

RESPONDENTS' ANSWER TO PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ON APPLICATION FROM COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II, NO. 47482-4-II

> Irene M. Hecht, WSBA No. 11063 Maureen M. Falecki, WSBA No. 18569 KELLER ROHRBACK L.L.P. 1201 Third Avenue, Suite 3200 Seattle, WA 98101-3052 Telephone: (206) 623-1900 Facsimile: (206) 623-3384 Attorneys for Respondents

David and Karen Lange



#

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

#### V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

A. Review Should Be Denied Because The Indemnity Provision Does Not Apply To The Facts Of This Case Nor Does The Guests' Request For Attorney's Fees Raise An Issue Of Substantial Public Interest That Merits This Court's Review.

Notably absent from the Guests' Petition for Discretionary Review is any argument or reasoned analysis to establish that the Court of Appeals' denial of the Guests' request for attorney's fees raises an issue of substantial public interest, as required for this Court to accept discretionary review

under RAP 13.4(b)(4). Instead, the Guests summarily claim that this Court has recognized the "importance of addressing indemnification and indemnity rights as evidenced by their acceptance of review in *City of Tacoma v. City of Bonney Lake*, 173 Wn.2d 584, 269 P.3d 1017 (2012)."<sup>27</sup> What the Guests fail to recognize is that this Court in *City of Tacoma* already addressed – *and rejected* - a virtually identical interpretation of an indemnity provision as the Guests make here. *City of Tacoma*, 173 Wn.2d at 593-594. Consequently, nothing about Guests' request for attorney's fees raises an issue of substantial public interest meriting this Court's review. The Petition for Discretionary Review should be denied.

Furthermore, this Court's holding in *City of Tacoma* and prior case law, fully supports the trial court's and Court of Appeals' repeated rejection of the Guests' interpretation of the indemnity provision found in the Patio or Deck Easement. "Indemnity agreements are subject to the fundamental rules of contract construction, *i.e.*, the intent of the parties['] controls; this intent must be inferred from the contract as a whole; the meaning afforded the provision and the whole contract must be reasonable and consistent with the purpose of the overall undertaking." *Knipschield v. C-J Recreation, Inc.*, 74 Wn. App. 212, 215, 872 P.2d 1102 (1994). An indemnity provision

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> Petition for Review at p. 15-16.

must be read as the average person would read it; it should be given a "practical and reasonable rather than a literal interpretation," and not a "strained or forced construction" leading to absurd results. *Eurick v. Pemco Ins. Co.*, 108 Wn. 2d 338, 341, 738 P.2d 251 (1987), quoting *E-Z Loader Boat Trailers, Inc. v. Travelers Indem. Co.*, 106 Wn.2d 901, 907, 726 P.2d 439 (1986).

In City of Tacoma, 173 Wn.2d 584, Tacoma sued the defendant municipalities under a franchise agreement to determine whether the municipalities or the City of Tacoma was responsible for certain water costs. The Court held that the franchise agreement required the City of Tacoma to pay the water costs. Id. at 591-92. Then, just as the Guests argue here, the municipalities argued that an indemnification provision in the franchise agreements required the City of Tacoma (indemnitor) to indemnify the municipalities with respect to the lawsuit the City filed against them, and hence, the indemnity provision precluded Tacoma's lawsuit. Id. at 593. The indemnification and hold harmless provision provided as follows:

[Tacoma] hereby releases, covenants not to bring suit and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City . . . from any and all claims, costs, judgments, awards or liability to any person.

*Id.* Just as the Guests argue here, the municipalities argued that the indemnity provision broadly applied to "any and all claims," thereby precluding the City of Tacoma from filing *any* action against the municipalities. *Id.* This Court expressly rejected this argument:

While this language [in the indemnity provision] is undeniably broad, it does not prevent Tacoma, a party to the contract, from suing the Municipalities, another party to the contract. Concluding otherwise would produce the absurd result of precluding a party to a contract from disputing its obligations under that contract."

## *Id.* (emphasis added)

Similarly, under a second indemnity provision, just as the Guests' do here, the City of Federal Way argued that the City of Tacoma was required to defend Federal Way in Tacoma's lawsuit because the indemnity provision applied to "any and all claims." *Id.* at 594. That second provision provided as follows:

[Tacoma agrees to] indemnify and hold harmless and defend [Federal Way] from any and all claims, demands, losses, actions and liabilities (including costs and all attorney's fees) to or by any and all persons.

*Id.* at 594. As with the municipalities' claims, this Court rejected Federal Way's argument, holding that to interpret the indemnity provision so as to force Tacoma to bear all costs of litigation when there was any dispute over

contractual performance between parties, likewise "produces an absurd result." *Id.* at 594.<sup>28</sup>

Just as this Court rejected the municipalities' arguments in the *City of Tacoma*, the Court of Appeals below rejected the Guests' argument that the indemnity provision in the Patio or Deck Easement requires the Langes to indemnify the Guests and bear all litigation costs for "any and all claims" related to the easement. *Guest v. Lange*, 195 Wn. App. at ¶¶29-30. Just as in *City of Tacoma*, the Guests' interpretation produces an absurd result - it precludes the Langes from asserting their lawful rights under the Patio or Deck Easement, and requires them to actually fund the Guests' lawsuit against them. The Court of Appeals properly followed *City of Tacoma* in rejecting the Guests' claim for attorney's fees, and instead, gave the indemnity provision a practical and reasonable interpretation, holding that it is intended to protect the Guests from liability for injuries sustained on the easement portion of the Langes' deck arising from the utilization of the easement. *Id.* at ¶30. The Court of Appeals' holding is consistent with, and supported by, Washington law.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> See also, Taylor v. Browning, 129 Idaho 483, 493, 927 P.2d 873 (1996) (holding that indemnity clause did not bar indemnitor's claim against indemnitee because there was no liability to a third party); ProteoTech, Inc. v Unicity Int'l, Inc., 547 F. Supp. 2d 1174, 1180 (W.D. Wash. 2008) (rejecting as unreasonable, plaintiff's interpretation of an indemnity agreement as seeking to "transform the indemnification clause into a blank check to sue and collect attorneys' fees").

Nor is the Court of Appeals holding in conflict with the Court of Appeals decision in *Newport Yacht Basin Ass'n of Condominium Owners v. Supreme Northwest, Inc.*, 168 Wn. App. 86, 285 P.3d 70 (2012), *review denied*, 176 Wn.2d 1015 (2012). The indemnity provision at issue in *Newport Yacht Basin* was between a seller and purchaser of property. The indemnity provision required the seller to indemnify the buyer for "any and all liabilities or claims . . . arising in respect of the Property." *Id.* at 101. The seller had, unbeknownst to the buyer, failed to convey proper title to the buyer. After the buyer sold the property to a third party, the improper title was discovered. The third party asserted a claim against the buyer for the bad title, and the buyer sought indemnification from the seller under the indemnity provision. The indemnification provision provided as follows:

Seller [Radovich] hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Purchaser [Burbridge/Bridges] harmless from: . . . (b) any and all liabilities or claims, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, arising in respect of the Property which relate to any period prior to the closing, whether any such liabilities or claims have been asserted prior to or after the closing.

Id. at 100 (emphasis added). The trial court determined that the indemnity agreement required the seller to indemnify the buyer, and the Court of Appeals agreed. Id. at 101. According to the Court, because the third party's claims against the buyer were based on the seller's failure to convey proper title, the third party's claim against the buyer arose "in respect of the

Property" and related to a "period prior to the closing," the claims were covered by the indemnity agreement and the seller had an obligation to indemnify the buyer. *Id*.

Nothing about the Court of Appeals' interpretation of the indemnity provision in the Patio or Deck Easement conflicts with the court's analysis in *Newport Yacht Basin*. While the court in *Newport Yacht Basin* noted that the phrase "any and all claims' is to be given its ordinary meaning and includes all types of claims," it did so in the context of requiring the seller indemnity the buyer for claims asserted against the buyer by a third party — a claim in "respect of the Property." *Id.* at 101. In other words, the indemnity provision applied to require that the seller defend and indemnify the buyer because a third party was asserting a claim falling directly within the terms of the provision: the third party was asserting a claim against the buyer "arising in respect of the Property which relate[d] to any period prior to the closing." *Id.* 

The indemnity provision in this case, however, <u>does not</u> apply to any and all claims related to the easement, as the Guests appear to argue. Instead, it applies only to third party claims asserted against the Guests for injuries sustained on the easement portion of the Langes' deck arising from the "utilization of the easement." There simply is no conflict between the holdings in *Newport Yacht Basin* and the Court of Appeals decision below.

Finally, the Guests' assertion that the indemnity provision should be interpreted to require the Langes to indemnify the Guests for the Guests' own wrongful conduct is nonsensical. The indemnity provision in the Patio or Deck Easement does not contain any language purporting to require the Langes to indemnify the Guests for the Guests' wrongful conduct. Finally, even if the indemnity provision in the Patio or Deck Easement applied to the facts of this case, which it does not, the Guests would not be entitled to recover any attorney's fees incurred in connection with the dispute over the interpretation of the indemnity agreement. *Jones v. Strom Constr. Co*, 84 Wn.2d 518, 523, 527 P.2d 1115 (1974) (holding that "in the absence of express contractual terms to the contrary, an indemnitee may not recover legal fees incurred in establishing his right to indemnification").

In the final analysis, there is simply no basis upon which the Guests are entitled to recover attorney's fees. Washington courts follow the American rule – each party in a civil action is obligated to pay its own attorney's fees and costs, unless an obligation to pay the others' attorney's fees and costs is clearly set forth in a contract, statute or a recognized ground in equity. Cosmopolitan Eng'g Grp., Inc. v. Ondeo Degremont, Inc, 159 Wn.2d 292, 296-97, 149 P.3d 666 (2006). The Court of Appeals properly rejected the Guests' request for attorney's fees because there is no legal basis upon which to award fees on appeal or for any proceedings below. As

such, the Guests' Petition does not raise any issues of substantial public interest. The Petition for Discretionary Review should be denied.

# B. Review Should Be Denied Because The Guests' Second Issue Identified For Review Was Not An Issue In The Trial Court Or Before The Court of Appeals.

The Guests' second purported issue in their Petition for Discretionary Review is nonsensical, particularly in the context of this case. The Guests' second issue is somewhat unclear but appears to relate to the mechanics of posting a supersedeas bond under RAP 8.1, but that was never an issue raised in the trial court or before the Court of Appeals. Indeed, the Guests do not even identify any holding by the Court of Appeals addressing the issue for which they seek discretionary review. The only issues before the Court of Appeals on this appeal by the Guests, which was limited to the cancellation of the lis pendens, was whether the trial court properly cancelled the lis pendens the Guests had filed, whether the trial court abused its discretion in denying the Guests' motions to conduct discovery and to strike portions of David Langes' declaration, and whether the Guests were entitled to recover attorney's fees on appeal.<sup>29</sup> Neither party raised issues regarding the mechanics of filing a supersedeas bond under RAP 8.1 in the trial court or the Court of Appeals, nor did the Guests raise the issue in their

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> See Assignments of Error and Issue Statements in Appellants' Brief in Court of Appeals, p. 2-3.

motion for reconsideration before the appellate court. In short, issues relating RAP 8.1 and/or the mechanics of filing a supersedeas were never raised, briefed or argued in the trial court or the Court of Appeals. There is, therefore, no basis for discretionary review. See RAP 2.5(a) (an appellate court "may refuse to review any claim . . . not raised in the trial court"). Further, courts are not authorized to render advisory opinions. Grill v. Meydenbauer Bay Yacht Club, 57 Wn. 2d 800, 805, 359 P.2d 1040 (1961) (explicitly holding that "[w]e do not give advisory opinions"). Finally, the Guests' conclusory one sentence argument that the application of RAP 8.1 "is a matter of substantial public interest," is nothing more than an unsupported assertion and is completely insufficient under RAP 13.4(b)(4) to merit this Court's review, particularly on an issue never before presented in this litigation.

#### VI. CONCLUSION

The one actual issue raised by the Guests in their Petition—that the Court of Appeals erred in denying the Guests' request for attorney's fees based on the indemnity provision in the Patio or Deck Easement—has no ramifications beyond the parties to this dispute or the particular facts of this case. It is simply not an issue of substantial public interest meriting review by this Court. The Court of Appeals decision is based on well-settled Washington law regarding indemnity provisions and does not conflict with

any Supreme Court case or other Court of Appeals decision. As such, the Langes respectfully request the Court deny the Guests' Petition for Discretionary Review in its entirety.